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Michael's Mill C. 1824
Buckeystown
Private

Michael's Mill is a banked six story, stone, brick and wood building
set on the side of a steep rocky hill along the Monocacy River just
east of Buckeystown. The lower three stories are constructed of
locally quarried stone; the fourth story of brick, and the top
stories of wood. On the riverside, all four upper stories are made
of wood in order to cut the vibration and noise of the miil's
machinery. The building still contains much of the significant
power and milling equipment which was commercially manufactured
before 1892. The original power source was an overshot waterwheel
which was later replaced by three iron turbines; two of which are
still on the site.

As early as 1739, a mill was built by Meredith Davis Sr. in the
vicinity of Michael's Mill. It was one of over eighty gqust mills
which were operating on the Monocacy River in 1791.

Upon the death of Meredith Davis, Sr., the mill was willed to his
son, Ignatius, who owned the mill until 1825, when it was sold for
$25,000 to Christian Kemp and Daniel Buckey. By 1842, the mill had
developed into a very profitable business under the supervision of
Thomas Jyers, David Bready, and Ezekiel C. Wysham. Connected with
the mill was a sawmill, three stone dwellings, one log dwelling,
log stable, frame cooper shop and two large warehouses. Although
the mill was subjected to fire in 1855 and 1858, by 1860 the census
estimated production at $81,580. The mill operated until 1957
under the management of Leo Michael whose daughter still owns the
property.
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CITY, TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Buckeystown — VICINITY OF
STATE COUNTY
Marvland Frederick
EXCLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

A banked six-story stone, brick, and wood building set on the side of

a steep rocky hill along the Monocacy River. The lower three stories

are constructed of locally quarried stone; the fourth. story of brick,

and the top stories of wood. On the riverside, all four upper stories
are made of wood in order to cut the vibration and noise of the mill's
machinery. Entrance to the mill was off of the road on the fourth

floor. On the east side of the building there are three dcors for

pickup and delivery. The building still contains most of the signifi-
cant power and milling equipment. Virtually all machinery was commercially
manufactured with the most recent dated 1892. The original power

source was an overshot waterwheel which was later replaced by three iron
turbines; two are still on the site. Water for the turbines was supplied
from a masonry dam, originally constructed under the supervision of

the Potomack Company. There is some question as to the date of the
present dam, most of which is still intact.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



E-1-77

K} SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

_PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC __COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE __RELIGION
—-1400-1499 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION __LAW ——SCIENCE
—1500-1599 _AGRICULTURE _—ECONOMICS — LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 __ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION —MILITARY __SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 _ART —ENGINEERING —MUSIC __THEATER
X_1800~1899 . COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT —_PHILOSOPHY —TRANSPORTATION
—1900- —COMMUNICATIONS _XINDUSTRY _POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER (SPECIFY)

__INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES 1824 BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

A mill was built before 1739, on a 450 acre piot of land owned by
Meredith Davis, Sr. who gave it to his son, Meredith Davis, Jr. He
leased the mill on September 11, 1739 to William Mathews. Because the
system of roads was too poor to support a commercial mill at this time,
it must have been used by the owner for his own private use. However,
by 1791 there were over eighty grist mills on the Monocacy. These mills
played an important part in the economic and social life of the region.
When Meredith Davis, Jr. died, the mi1l passed into the hands of his
son, Ignatius, and Charles who was either a son or brother. Charles
sold his share to Ignatius, who in 1794 discovered that he did not own
the land on which the mill was built and so had to buy four acres from
William Tannehill. On June 10, 1825, the mill was sold for $25,000 to
Christian Kemp and Daniel Buckey. The Kemp family share of the mill
was left to Buckey about 1839. Buckey sold the Kemp interest to Thomas
J. Myers, David Bready, and Ezekiel C. Wysham and in 1842 sold his share
to the three partners. In 1846, Myers bought Wysham's share and along
with Bready developed the mill into a strong business. The 1850 census
shows the mill was worth $20,000. Connected with the mill were a
sawmill, three stone dwellings, one log dwelling, log stable, frame
copper shop, and two large warehouses, one at the Buckeystown depot of
the B&C Railroad, and another at Noland's Ferry on the C&0 Canal. In
1851 Myers died and Theodore C. Delaplaine purchased his share and
later bought out Bready. In 1855 and 1858 the mill was set afire,
supposedly by a slave who held a grudge against her owner. The mill
prospered under Delaplaine's ownership and was valued at $27,000 in the
1860 census with a production valued at $81,580. Flour from the mill
was used by both sides during the Civil War. The ownership of the mill
subsequently changed hands several times until 1909 when it was managed
by Leo Michael who operated the mill until 1957. The mill was then
mainly used to clean seed wheat and grind cattle feed.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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FIMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES
A paper by Michael W. Robbins of the Smithsonian Institution, June 1968.

Historic Sites Survey of Western Frederick County and Montgomery County,
Sugarloaf Regional Trails.
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ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY —
[81FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE clh
Cherilyn Widell, Sites Analyst
ORGANIZATION DATE
Frederick County Office of Historic Preservation 6/19/78
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
12 E. Church St., Winchester Hall 663-8300 ext 266
CITY OR TOWN STATE
Frederick Maryland 21701

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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Miehael's Mill (ineludes =ill, =manor house, slave quarters
AND/OR HISTORIC:

Monocaecy Mills (Na

of entire estate)

STREET AND NUMBER:

On route 80, on Monocacy River, 1 =ile off Route 89 east of

CITY OR TOWN: _)u l&t') 5 bUhLl
Buckeystown

STATE COUNTY:
Maryiand Frederick

CA .

TEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS _ ACCESSIBLE
(Check One) . . TO THE PUBLIC

[ District X Building {3 Public Public Acquisi'ioﬁ: Occupied Yes:

X Site O Structure Bg Private [0 In Process 0] Unoccupied Q Restricted

[J Object O Beoth ] Being Considered [ Preservation work O Unrestricted
in progress D No

PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

) Agricultural - [0 Government O Pork - [ Transportation {3 Comments
Commercial [ Industrio! {3 Private Residence [1] Other (Specity)
[J Educationa! 3 Militery {J Religious

[ Entertainment O Museum | [0 Scientific

Jeré:e J. and Mildred M. Créwi

STREET AND NUMBER:

Box 103 |
Buekeystown B - Maryland

COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC:

Frederiek County Court Houss

STREET AND NUMBER:

Court Square

CITY OR TOWN: STATE
Frederick Maryland
Title Reference of Current Deed (Book & Pg. #): 549 225

TITLE OF SURVEY:

L -/—/0

DATE OF SURVEY: {3 Federal [ Stote [3 County [ Local

DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:

STREET AND NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN: STATE:
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CONDITION (Check One) (Check One)

[ Altered O Unaltered : O Moved X} Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
Mill - Built of loeal stone, 6 stories high (plus flune) direecg--
- 1ly on Monoecacy. Biver. ‘Has 66-ft. long pine b-an.-~ .
Top.two_stories are of wooden construetion. :
Entrance level has stone front and brick sides.
- -Four top floors at rear are wooden construction
Side windows frox straet level cown are arched.
Land---ll.502 aeres, hllly, w1tb about four aeres- flat land
along Honocacy River

Nanor/House — was built by 1839, additlon 1851 seeond .ddltlon
cem -— eompleted before- -137%, First floor has- four- rooms-with
roofed paved area conneeting manor house to three-roox
——-=i5tone- strueture, -forzxing-& high-eeilinged utility roox. Tﬂe"
-—-ﬂ“cellar" rooxs 11e behind the first floor, dug-into the
hillside. A1l outer walls are 22"' Intericr wall= at

additions - are also 22%.~ - -

3 2 — :

33§

Pt n‘¢$ ; : . -

Slave ngrters - Flrst floor has 22" wide stens foundation and
__Walls. two rooks. . o

~ __ Second sloor. is log construction. Ewo ‘YOOEMS.> -
-Third floor has two roons, m1th sloping celllngs.~h,

éuy‘nor House (cont d J Second floor has .5 rooams ang 2 baths

—.. .. .Third floor has.3 rooxs, and no baths. . e
"7 Stairway has h¢hdson¢, substantlal walnut ‘newel. Dost‘»'

T 7 @nd railtwith cak post. Ty T T e
' Second floor parlor (242,1 174 ) has nusmerous orlolnal

T 7T piintings by Geértrude Steiner and many lovely antigues.
: Throughout the house are othear paintings by Gertrude Stej
"‘“*”"Stelner. "AlTT are exquisitely frazed in the latter 19th-

eentury tradltlon.. ;
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[ Architecture O Lendscape 3 Sculpture
0O At . - ~ . ~.— Architecture [ Seocial/Humon-
Fommorco - I Literature .__ _ itorian
(] Communications -3 4Mi|i'ury [  Theater .
-3 Conservation - .“D Music -~ - — — [ Transportation - e
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Mill opsarateda 1739 to 1957 One of esarliest mills in Freder-
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LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE ProrerTY |0 DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
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APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY:

Acreage Justification:

11.502 acresr

R IST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE: COUNTY
STATE: COUNTY:
N -~ : - -
STATE: COUNTY:
STATE: . - . R COUNTY:
‘ i e
. “

R

NAME AND TITLE:

Mary Margrabe and Ann Lebherz

ORGANIZATION

Frederick County Landmarks Foundation, Ine.

DATE

hug. 2, 1972

STREET AND NUMBER:

Rose Hill Manor

Forth Market Street

CITY OR TOWN:

Fredericxk

STATE

State Liaison Officer Review:

(0Office Use Only)

National [ State [ Local

Significance of this property is:

a
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